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Honorable Chair and Board Members:

At today's meeting, the Nevada County Historical Landmarks Commission voted
unanimously to recommend to the Board that the application for landmark designation
of The Rome Power House be approved. The applicant is Michale Funk, who owns the
site. The landmark is to be designated as Nevada County Historical Landmark NEV
23-01.

The Power House, which began operating in 1896, was the first hydroelectric
generating plant built on the South Yuba River. It initially served mines in the area, led to
the electrification of Nevada City, and helped give birth to California's hydroelectric
power industry. Its founders merged their California Gas and Electric Co. with the San
Francisco Gas and Electric Co. to create the Pacific Gas and Electric Co. in 1905.

The research and documentation which accompanies the application has been
reviewed by several Commissioner for historical accuracy. The application and
supporting documentation is enclosed.

If you approve the application, please forward the resolution and accompanying
documents to the County Recorder. If you have any further questions, do not hesitate
to contact me. Thank you in advance for your consideration of this request.

Yours truly,
)l o

Bernard Zim yn Chair

cc: Michael Funk




County of Nevada
State of California

Nevada County Historical Landmarks Commission
Application for Registration of Historical Landmark

Name of proposed landmark_ THE ROME POWER HOUSE

Location SOUTH YUBA RIVER BETWEEN THE HWY 49 BRIDGE AND PURDON
CROSSING. APN: 032-450-004-000

Name of applicant__MICHAEL FUNK

Address 19700 PURDON ROAD, NEVADA CITY, CALIFORNIA 95959

Home or work phone—__ cell phone

Name and address of owner upon whose property proposed landmark

is located, if owner is not applicant

| consent to this application and authorize the placing of a plaque or marker
on site.

C — ’ /,,l - . e 4 .z-/j/lj

Owner’s signature Date
MICHAEL FUNK

2022 rev.



Brief history and description of proposed landmark

(attach additional sheets as necessary)

"Pacific Gas and Electric Co. was created in October 1905, when the California Gas and Electric
Co. purchased San Francisco Gas and Electric Co. This culminated a hectic 10-year when Eugene
J. de Sabla Jr. and John Martin (In PG&E annals, called the “Fathers of PG&E”) along with
investment business partner, Romulus R. Colgate, built and acquired numerous powerhouses
and gas and electric systems in northern California.

They first built the Nevada Powerhouse, near Nevada City on the South Yuba River, which was
placed service on February 5,1896. This happened there because—
1) The many quartz gold mines in the area were hungry for cheap energy
2) The Pelton Wheel had been invented nearby and was manufactured in Nevada City and
3) Animportant catalyst was created when de Sabla, Martin, and Colgate were brought
together in a remarkable partnership.

They expanded this plant in 1897 and went on to build the Yuba Powerhouse, near Browns
Valley, in 1898, and the Colgate Powerhouse at Dobbins in 1899.

They made numerous acquisitions of other plants and gas and electric systems in northern
California. This led to the creation of the California Gas and Electric Co. in 1903, with Romulus R.
Colgate as President.

And it all started in Nevada County with the Nevada Powerhouse, or the “Rome” Powerhouse as
it was affectionately called after Mr. Colgate’s nickname.” — A Dale Johnson, 2023

Historically significant aspects or properties of proposed landmark

The Rome Power House was the first and only hydroelectric generating plant built on the South
Yuba River. Planning for the plant began in 1892. It entered service in 1896, initially serving
mines in the area. It eventually led to the electrification of Nevada City, one of the early
pioneering systems in California. Eugene J de Sable and John Martin, went on to help found
Pacific Gas and Electric and were known as the “Fathers of P. G. & E”

How will the landmark be protected and maintained?

The remains of the Rome Power House includes foundations and remnants of penstocks and
outflow piping. They are located on privately owned property situated on the South Yuba River
between the Highway 49 bridge and Purdon Crossing. The owner has a deep interest in
preserving the remains of the power plant and recognizes its importance to Nevada County
history.

2022 rev,



Bibliography. Cite or attach available books, records, articles or other
materials pertaining to the proposed landmark.
Books and articles:

Please see the attached article The Nevada “Rome” Power House — the Birthplace of PG&E. —
By A. Dale Johnson, 2008

A map of the power house location and flumes
Yuba River Power Development and the birth of PG&E timeline as prepared by A. Dale Johnson

Technical Data as prepared by A. Dale Johnson

Map showing the initial power distribution

A photo of the developers of the powerhouse, Alfonso Tregidgo and Eugene J. de Sable
Three photos of the penstocks and the powerhouse

Three photos of the construction of the powerhouse

A photo of the Excelsior diversion dam just below the powerhouse that fed the Excelsior ditch
A photo of the diversion dam near Purdon’s Crossing that fed the powerhouse

Five photos of the powerhouse from different viewpoints

A photo of the high power Pelton Wheel added to the outside of the main building

An interior photo of the power plant

The Nevada City Substation

Nevada City Historical Society article by Pat Jones published in 1969 titled: A Little Powerhouse
Called “Rome” 1895 to 1910

A photo of the Boarding House across the river from the power plant

A news article in the Union newspaper outlining the dismantling of the Rome power house
The original Prospectus for the Nevada County Electric Power Company in 1895

An early article on the Old Nevada County Electric Power Company

A photo of the founders of the power plant

Two photos of the existing remains of the Rome Power House

2022 rev.



Other: (e.g. photographs, prints or drawings. Please list and attach

separately)
SEE ATTACHED DOCUMENTS

) 7
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—7 = A 2/57/2 3
Applicant’s signature Date

MICHAEL FUNK

This completed form and all related documents shall be sent to the:

Nevada County Historical Landmarks Commission
Attention: Chairman
P. O. Box 1014, Nevada City, Cal. 95959

Attachments and related documents may be submitted in electronic format.

An application must be considered solely on its historic or architectural
merits and not for commercial gain, political benefits, or other non historical
reasons.

An individual Commissioner can advise and counsel an applicant, but all
applications must be considered by the full Commission, meeting in regular
session.

2022 rev.



ROME POWERHOUSE ON THE SOUTH YUBA RIVER
The birth of Pacific Gas and Electric

Prepared for the Nevada County Landmark Commission
February 3, 2023



The Nevada “Rome” Power House -- the Birthplace of PG&E
By A. Dale Johnson, © 2008, PG&E Retired

Overview

The Yuba River system gave birth to the hy-
droelectric power industry in the late 1890’s as a
result of several factors coming together at the
same time —

** mine owners were in need of reliable and lower
cost power,

** the Pelton Wheel was invented in Camptonville
and first manufactured at Allan’s Foundry in Ne-
vada City,

** existing mining ditches were idle or underutilized
and could deliver water,

*« technology was being developed to transmit
electricity over wires to distant locations,

-= and most importantly, two entrepreneurs by the
names of John Martin and Eugene J. de Sabla
came to Nevada City.

Romulus Riggs Colgate became an in-
vestment partner with de Sabla and Martin and to-
gether they developed hydroelectric power
projects and acquired other projects throughout
northern California. Within ten years they con-
trolied the vast majority of all electric and gas sys-
tems in northern California, with the exception of
San Francisco. They then purchased the San
Francisco Gas and Electric Co., of which William
B. Bourn was president, and merged it with their
California Gas and Electric Co. to create Pacific
Gas and Electric Co. in October 1905.

And it all started in Nevada County! This ar-
- ticle will be the story of the Nevada Power House,
_ or, as it was affectionately known, the “Rome Pow-
erhouse”.

Early Mining Ditches

The first major mining ditch was the seven
mile long Rock Creek Ditch, constructed in 1850 to
take water from Rock Creek to Coyote Hill in Ne-
~ vada City. The Rock Creek Ditch Co. is con-
‘. sidered to be the oldest entity on the PG&E
corporate family tree. Charles Marsh, a pio-
neer in water development in Nevada County, and

Blrdseye Vlew of Nevada “‘Rome” Powerhouse
— note flume at left center to low-head PH and
penstock from top of mountain to high-head PH

his partners built the Rock Creek Ditch for $10,000
and recovered it’s cost in 6 weeks from the water-
hungry miners.

The ditch business then became very com-
petitive! Rivals built ditches from Deer Creek to
Nevada City. Lawsuits about water rights led to
consolidations and the Deer Creek and Coyote
Water Co. in late 1851. Ground sluicing soon gave
way to hydraulic mining, which was first used on
Buckeye Hill by Anthony Chabot. One major com-
pany emerged in the Nevada City area, the Rock
Creek, Deer Creek, and South Yuba Canal Co., in
1854. The company name was shortened to South
Yuba Canal Company in 1870 and their office was
located in the historic building now occupied by the



Eugene J. de Sabla, Jr. was a descendent
of French nobility, born in Panama in 1865. He
was educated in San Francisco and then took a
course in assaying, where he met George Hearst
and others of Mother Lode fame. He started his
work life at a copper mine in Arizona, of which his
father was part owner. It was here, that he first met
Tregidgo. When the mine closed, due to falling
copper prices, de Sabla returned to San Francisco
and became a full partner in Eugene de Sabla and
Company, and managed the business. The finan-
cial panic of 1893 resulted in his decision to liqui-
date his father’s company.

John Martin,
Entrepreneur

Romulus Riggs
Colgate, Investor |

John Martin was born in Indianapolis in
1858. He spent his boyhood in Brooklyn and since
age 13 fended for himself. After experience in Al-
abama real estate and working for Armour in
Chicago, he came to California. He worked for a
San Francisco coal importing firm for a time and
then established his own business, the John Mar-
tin Company, which dealt in pig iron. He was the
agent for the U. S. Cast Iron Pipe Company.

Romulus Riggs Colgate, born in 1858, was
a grandson of the founder of the Colgate Soap and
Perfume Co. The lure of the West was strong, so
he acquired gold-mining properties in Grass Valley
and Nevada City. As fate would have it, he became
an investor in the Nevada County Electric Power
Co. after accidentally meeting de Sabla as he was
on his way to the railway ticket agency. De Sabla
was going to New York to ask his grand uncle
Peter Marie de Sabla to invest. Colgate said “So,
you are the nephew of Uncle Peter Marie, | know
him and have dined at his home. But why go to
him for money? Maybe | can take his place!” Col-
gate then became a $40,000 investor for one-fifth
interest in the company. From that time on he be-

came a strong financial backer of hydroelectric de-
velopment.

Martin and de Sabla Become a Team

Tregidgo became part owner of the Peabody Mine
in Grass Valley, after he left Arizona. He had be-
come troubled by the high cost and inefficiency of
steam power for pumping and other operations.
He then conceived of the idea of supplying electric
power to the mines from reading an account of
transmission of electric power from Tripoli to
Rome, Italy, and after hearing of early experiments
in California. He decided to build a hydro plant on
the South Yuba River, to serve, not only his own
mine, but also others in Grass Valley and Nevada
City. By this time, he had hooked-up again with de
Sabla who had also acquired an interest in the
Peabody Mine.

Late 1894 was the occasion when John
Martin was invited to a San Francisco luncheon by
a friend, Charles W. Randall, druggist and Mother
Lode mine owner. Randall had also invited de
Sabla, thinking that his friend, Martin might get an
order to supply pipe for de Sabla’s powerhouse
project. Mr. de Sabla indicated he was planning to
finance and build an electric plant on the South
Fork of the Yuba River, with his associate Mr.
Tregidgo. The three men talked of water, genera-
tors, and other aspects of the project. The Stanley
Electrical Manufacturing Co. was talked about as
making the best generators for their type project.
Martin did not ask for an order, as he had some-
thing else in mind........

It was, also, around this time that Martin
had become aware of the Stanley Electric Manu-
facturing Co. through a Mr. Lindner, an electrician
who had shown him a letter from the Stanley com-
pany. The letter authorized Lindner to sell Stanley
products on a commission basis.

Martin, intrigued by the earlier luncheon
talk, went to Pittsfield, Mass. where he obtained
an interview with William Stanley, the inventor and
head of the company. Martin had no electrical
training, but he must have been very convincing,
because they gave him the California agency for
their products!

One day, two or three months later, Martin
and de Sabla encountered each other on Mont-
gomery Street in San Francisco. Martin said, “I'm



ready now for your order” and de Sabla replied,
“What order?” thinking that Martin had forgotten
all about their previous luncheon discussion.

Martin and de Sabla were then brought to-
gether into a remarkable team. They reportedly
reached their agreement while staying at Nevada
City’s National Hotel. The story goes that the busi-
ness negotiations took place in the hotel’s bar and
later in de Sabla’s office in Suite 74! Thus, it can be
said, that the National Hotel is the birthplace of
PG&E, because the agreement made there led to
a hectic 10-year period of development and ac-
quisitions, and the creation of PG&E in October
1905!

Nevada “Rome” Power House

The Nevada County Electric Power Co.
was incorporated on September 22, 1892, well be-
fore the historic Folsom project was envisioned
and decided upon. Officers included Tregidgo as
President, de Sabla as Vice-President and Fred
Searls, Attorney. A financial depression then put
the project on hold until 1895.

The diversion Dam for the first powerhouse
was located 3&1/2 miles above the power-
house on the South Yuba River.

The Nevada head dam, located about
1&1/2 miles above the Purdon Crossing, was
started on August 1, 1895 and completed within
four months. It was made of logs piled crib-fash-
ion, 28 feet high and 107 feet wide at the top. Be-
fore the cribs could be filled with rock and gravel,
the river began rising rapidly, stopping the work.
Fortunately, the “slickens” washed down and filled

every nook and cranny of the crib-work, packing it
solid with deposits, better than it could have been
done by the men! The head dam, years later, was
fortified with a granite wall on the downstream
face, 12 feet thick at the base and 2 feet at the top.

The flume, in itself a major project, was
started July 6 and completed by November 28,
1895. It was 6’ wide by 4 1/2’ deep, 3&1/2 miles
long, using 1,250,000 feet of lumber and 110 men
for four months. The flume had a gradient of 26 &
2/3 feet per mile and could carry 5800 miner’s
inches of water to the penstock above the power-
house site.

is view frbm the north side of the Purdon
Crossing Bridge, shows the Nevada Flume on

the slope above it on the south side.

head dam of the Excelsior Ditch, which had been
installed 36 years earlier. This was a logical site
because the water diverted to the powerhouse
could be returned to the river without infringing on
the water rights of the Excelsior.

The site was in a beautiful narrow mountain
river canyon, but it was not a pretty picture from a
construction standpoint. The machinery had to be
brought in via rail to Nevada City from Colfax on
the Nevada County Narrow Gauge Railroad and
then hauled by wagon to the site.

The road above Nevada City had to be
widened and two additional miles built to a loca-
tion above Devil’s Slide. Six to 12 horse teams
hauled the machinery to the staging point at the
end of the road, which was about 1000 feet higher
in elevation than the powerhouse site. From there,
the equipment was lowered down the 1700 foot
slope, “Emigrant Gap style”, first on wagons, then
using heavy log sleds. The steepest slopes ranged
from 32 to 39 degrees. Generally, three 1&1/2 inch




manila ropes were used to control the load by
wrapping each several turns around a tree trunk.

The two Stanley generators, each con-
sisted of six pieces, with the heaviest weighing
11,200 pounds. The largest item in size was the
water receiver, which was 19 feet long, 4 feet in
diameter and weighed 4 tons.

The Power House was built on a solid gran-
ite shelf. The floor was 18 inch thick concrete an-
chored by 3%-inch rods, which were
sulfur-cemented into 18-inch deep holes drilled
down into the granite. The canyon was so narrow
that, the 10-bedroom boarding house was built on
the opposite side of the river and was reached by
a suspension footbridge.

The penstock was 298 feet long, with a
head of 190 feet. It tapered down from 48 to 44 to
42 inches to the receiver. The receiver delivered
water to the two sets of 2--34 1/2 inch Pelton
Wheels through 2--3 inch jets on each wheel.

The main electrical equipment consisted of
two Stanley generators, making 400 revolutions
per minute. Each generator produced 300 kilo-
watts of two-phase, 133-cycle power at 5500 volts.

This shows interior of powerhouse No. 1,
with two generators and two Pelton Wheels

powering each.

é. by -

A wood pole line was constructed 8 miles
to Nevada City and Grass Valley, using 30 foot
poles with two cross arms and 8--No. 3 B&S bare
copper wires supported by triple-petticoat white
porcelain insulators. The pole line Right-of-Way
was cleared 60 feet wide.

On the business side, de Sabla had been

signing up customers in the mining districts and
his assistant, J. E. Poindestre, was soliciting or-
ders for electric lights from business firms and
owners of residences.

Technical problems delayed the successful
operation from December 1895 to February 1896.
But finally on February 5, there was success! As
reported by the “The Daily Transcript” the following
day “The electric lights of the Nevada County Elec-
tric Power Company were turned on at 6 o’clock
last evening for the first time and attracted con-
siderable attention. The lights were quite brilliant
and the office of the company on Pine St. received
many visitors. The lights were burned in Lane’s liv-
ery stable, the Morgan House at Grass Valley and
the company’s office, these being the only places
wired and connected thus far, but in a few days
many other business places and residences will
be connected and lights furnished them. The offi-
cials of the company felt very much pleased over
the excellent beginning made and promise that it
will not be long that power, as well as lights can
be furnished to all who desire it.”

Throughout the first phase of the Nevada
Power House project, Tregidgo was in charge of
construction, Martin handled the delivery and in-
stallation of the machinery, with much help from
Engineer E.E. Stark, and de Sabla brought in the
customers. Tregidgo continued as Operating Su-
perintendent until October 1896, when he left for
new adventure in Alaska’s Klondike gold rush!

The High Head and Lake Vera

But success created more demand! Plans
were made to provide additional capacity by utiliz-
ing South Yuba water, which got to the power-
house by a roundabout way. They would use water
delivered into the Rock Creek ditch via the South
Yuba Canal.

A 327 foot long by 54 foot high crib-dam
was started on March 1, 1898 to back-up water
into a partially excavated basin that had formerly
been the scene of hydraulic mining. It was com-
pleted in November. The new Lake Vera, named
after de Sabla’s oldest daughter, covered 42 acres
and could furnish a constant flow of 1000 miner’s
inches for 30 days.

The powerhouse was expanded by adding
a new building, just down stream from the existing



one. Two more generators were added, which
more than doubled the plant output.

The Lake Vera viaduct was 2&3/4 miles
long and had a gradient so gradual it took 1 hour
and 5 minutes for water to reach the fore bay. It
consisted of 2340 feet of flume, 11,400 feet of
ditch (most of it an old mining ditch) to a small fore
bay on the hillside, in the vicinity of the “staging”
spot for lowering equipment down the canyon.
Two thirds of the way along the way, the Meyers
Ravine required an inverted siphon to be used to
cross the gorge. The siphon was 36-inch pipe and
668 feet long.

At this point, it would be appropriate to dis-
cuss the question-- “Is it the Rome Power House
or the Nevada Power House?” John Martin had
this to say “ But it’s a joke-- the calling of that little
plant the ‘Rome’ power house. It is the Nevada
powerhouse. The nickname came about in this
way: Romulus R. Colgate was associated with me
later in establishing the plant at Colgate, over on
the Middle Yuba. After that big one had been
named for him, some of us got to referring to the
little fellow over on the South Yuba as the “Rome”
power plant, “Rome” being the familiar shortening
of Colgate’s first name.” It is clear, however, that
‘Rome” became the name of choice and even
PG&E records use that name. And, after all “Isn’t
‘Rome’ a more romantic name for a power house
‘in the middle of no where’ than ‘Nevada’?”

The Lake Vera Dam burst on April 2, 1905,
when a 29-foot by 30-foot section gave way, caus-
ing outflow that dropped water level one inch per
minute. At the time of failure the water was 52 feet
deep, two feet below the top of the 54-foot dam.
Workmen stopped the flow with wood and cement.
Afterwards, the dam operated with a 40’ foot
height and diminished flow capacity of 1000
miner’s inches for 10 days instead of 30 days.

The Lake Vera expansion became known
as the “High Head” plant, at 785 feet and the orig-
inal plant as the “Low Head” at 190 feet. In con-
junction with this, the ‘normal’ flow of the South
Yuba flume was reduced from 5800 to 3800
miner’s inches.

The Nevada “Rome” Power House oper-
ated 15 years, until 1910. It was shutdown, as ob-
solete, when the power on the system was

he Lake Ve Dam was originally 54 high
and it failed in early 1905, as this photo shows.

changed from two-phase 133-cycle to 3-phase 60-
cycle, the standard of today. This little plant long
ago was the start of something big and is consid-
ered to be the “birthplace” of PG&E.

So--it can only be concluded that the “vi-
sion” and the “seeds” of this great enterprise did
come from the Yuba River! A testament to this is
the fact that throughout PG&E’s history, Martin and
de Sabla are referred to as the “Fathers” of PG&E.
Perhaps the Yuba River should be considered the
“Mother”!

About the Author:

A. Dale Johnson retired from PG&E in 1993 after
a 34 years with the company. He moved to Ne-
vada City in 1994 and since then has been study-
ing the water and electrical history of the Yuba
River basin. He has led numerous Treks or out-
ings for the Nevada County Land Trust and other
historical organizations. Treks have been taken to

* Yuba Powerhouse (1898)

* Nevada “Rome” Powerhouse (1896)

* Colgate Powerhouse (1899)—Trek this
year on October 25.

* Alta Powerhouse (1902)

* Historic Ditches of the South Yuba Canal

Company (1850 to 1900)

* Deer Creek Powerhouse (1908) — The
first Trek to this site will be this year on September
14 to celebrate its 100 year birthday.

He can be contacted at adalejohn@comcast.net
or 530-272-7039.
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"| Water -- So. Yuba River @ diversion below current Spaulding

Nevada “Rome” Powerhouse -- Technical Data
Generators -- 5500 volts @ 133 cycles, two-phase
Transmission -- # 3 Cu, 5500 volts, 8 mi. to NC & GV
Total Capacity -- 1260 kilowatts
Operation from Feb. 5, 1896 to October 28, 1910

Powerhouse No. 1 -- Two 300 KW units, built 1895-97
Water Wheels -- Two 34 1/2 inch Pelton Wheels per unit
Water -- Diversion from So. Yuba via 3 1/2 Mi. flume
Dam -- Crib-style, 28 feet high by 107 feet long
Head -- 190 feet (known as low-head plant)

Powerhouse No. 2 -- Two 330 KW units, built 1898/99
Water Wheels -- Three 31 inch Tutthill wheels per unit

Dam via So. Yuba Canal, then Ridge Ditch into Rock Creek
and Lake Vera, then 2 3/4 mile ditch/flume/siphon.
Lake Vera - 42 acres, crib-style dam, 54’ high and 327’ long
Head -- 785 feet (known as high-head plant)
(An externally mounted 5’ 6” wheel was also installed on the

same shaft as the No. 1 generator, so it could operate from ,
either of the water sources.)
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-, W‘:- Nevada “Rome” powerhouse was built to provide electricity to the mines of
Nevada City and Grass Valley. This is the Spanish Mine, owned by Romulus
. Riggs Colgate, who was a part owner of the powerhouse.
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EJ_'I—IE Company is duly organized under the Laws of

the State of California._ . —————————

CAPITAL, = - $500,000.
100,000 Shares, = - = = $5.00 each.

e

BOARD OF DIRECTORS :
War. M. Piersox, Esg., San Francisco.
D. B. Davipsox, EsQ., San Francisco.
C. A. Grow, Eso., San Francisco.
E. J. pE SaBLa, Jr., Esg., San Francisco.
ALF. A. TrREGIDGO, Esq., Nevada County.

ATTORNEYS FOR THE COMPANY :
MEessrs PIERsON & MrrcHELL, San Francisco. FrRED. SEaRrLS, Nevada City.

].%ﬁ ]}-‘i@, 0. buX $ur636 - ORLANDL, FL 5460 407, 4B4-_.00
ARCHIVAI PRESERVERS

ENGINEERS OF CONSTRUCTION :
W. R. Ecgart, C. & M. E. W. F. C. Hassox, E. & M., E. Axprew M. Hunt, E. & M. E.

Office of the Company, Room 8, 40 California St., San Francisco.



Proposed Plan.

It is proposed to dam the South Yuba River, and divert the water at the dam site, and construct an
aqueduct capable of carrying 4200 miner's inches of water, on a grade of ten feet to the mile, for a distance

of three miles. ' ‘ .
This quantity of water, under a head of 250 feet, will give 2500 h. p. on Pelton wlheels, which

it is estimated will be quite sufficient to supply all future demand. The pipe to COHVG..‘)’ the water from
the penstock at the end of flume to the receiver at the power house will be made a(.:COr(llugly. .

Of the 2500 available h. p. at the power house, it is propose_d to traT‘JS]'lllt 550 to Nevada City
and Grass Valley immediately, and to generate and transmit the remainder as it is demanded.

BOND ISSUE.
The Company is duly authorized to issue $200,000 of 20 year 7% 1st mortgage construction bonds.

TRUSTEE. N .
Mr. D. B. Davidson is the Trustee for the bondholders until such time as the plant is in operation,
when the Trustee will be the Union Trust Company of San Francisco.

AMOUNT OF BONDS FOR SALE.
In order to carry out the proposed plan of construction, $60,000 is required. The Company propose
to sell $60,000 of these bonds at par.

DENOMINATION OF BONDS.
Bonds will be issued of such denomination as will meet the requirements of the subscribers.

PROSPECTUS OF NEVADA COUNTY ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY, 9

SUBSCRIPTIONS TO BONDS.

Subscriptions for bonds will be received by the Trustee, D. B. Davidson, Esq., at the Nevada Bank
of San Francisco, until July 1st, at noon. ‘The full amount, viz., $60.000, must be subscribed before
any bouds are issned or payment demanded.

BONUS.

A bonus of 500 shares of the Capital Stock of the Company will be given to each pur-
chaser of $1000 of bonds.
PROFIT TO STOCKHOLDERS.

After having made the power available to generate 2500 h. p. at the power Douse, the profit
on the transmission of 550 h. p. to market will be as follows: taking as a basis that the Company dispose
of that amount for one-half what it costs the consumer at present for steam power:

550 . p. at $75 per annum, - - - - - - - 841,250 0O
Ruuning expenses, - - 3 - - - $10,000 00
Wear and tear, - - - - - - - 1,000 00
Sinking fund, 5%, - - - - - - 3,000 00
Interest, 7%, - - - - - - - 4,2C0 00
Extras, taxes, etc., - - - - - - 1,050 0O

19,250 00

Profit on the sale of 550 h. p., - - - - - $22,000 00

Dividend to stockholders on the sale of 550 h. p. 1st year, - - - 20c. per share,

2ULATF MO 21" Th

KO ROY 0N\02M . AKFYIANA' LI 2800 . [8n\) pae-2100

VECHUWT bLSESEEAES:




cococeor

"

%
=

6 PROSPECTUS OF NEVADA COUNTY ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY.

(or 4800 cubic feet), having been always full and a large quantity overflowing thejr dam. By referring to
the cut showing the Company’s proposed power house, it will be seen that our water is returned to the
River above the Excelsior Company's dam.

PROPERTY.

The Company own 4oo acres of land, situated on the banks of the South Yuba River, through
which the aqueduct will pass, and over this property the county road from Nevada City to Sierra County
crosses, Nevada City is connected by rail with the Central Pacific at Colfax, thus facilitating transporta-
tion to the works.

REPORTS.

Reports have been made by prominent engineers upon this enterprise, and can be seen, with ac-
companying maps and diagrams, at the Company’s office.

MARKET FOR POWER.

The amount of power now in use in the mines of Grass Valley and Nevada City is estimated to be
in the vicinity of 2500 h. p., of which about 1000 h. p. is generated by steam, the balance by water power.
In addition to this there are at present idle a large number of mines which are unable to work on account
of the high cost of power generated by steam, and that are so situated that they canuot use water to ad-
vantage. The amount of this idle power is estimated at about 1500 h. p., of which the greater part will
take advantage of the introduction of electricity.

It will be seen by reference to the accompanying diagram the great advantage of the Company's
location, as from the dam to thie power station, a distance of three miles, the natural bend of the river
is southerly, thus saving Zzo miles in the length of the wire, and cousequently shortening the distance
that the power is to be transmitted.

PROSPECTUS OF NEVADA COUNTY ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY. 7

The course of the pole line is designated by the line starting at the power station, and running to
1, thence 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7.

Each square in the diagram represents a section one mile square.

1. Group of mines on Deer Creek, one-half mile west of Nevada City, comprising the Nevada

City Mine, Wyoming, Spanish, Champion, Merrifield, Home, Mountaineer, Providence, etc,, etc. This

will be a distributing point, and from it will be switched sufficient power to supply Nevada City with
electricity, and mines east of Nevada City.

2. Town Talk Summit being the highest point on the high-road between Nevada City and Grass
Valley, also the summit on the N. C. N. G. R. R. Here will be erected a so-arc light dynamo to light
with electricity the Nevada City and Grass Valley wagon road, and from this point power will be trans-
mitted to the Gold Flat, Merrimac and Pittsburg mines.

3. The Idaho, Maryland group of mines.
4. The Empire, W. Y. O. D. and Pennsylvania group. From this point power will be trans-

mitted to Osborne Hill, Conlan, Laffayette, Centennial, Green Mountain and other mines, taking in all
properties lying in a southeasterly direction from Grass Valley.

5. ‘The Omaha and Lone Jack group. From this point power will be distributed southerly to the
celebrated Allison Ranch Mine, taking in the Illinois, Wisconsin, Hartery and other mines.

6. The North Star Mine.

7. The Peabody Mine, taking in on its route the Rocky Bar, New VYork Hill, Hudson Bay,

Tribute, Massachusettt Hill, Stockbridge, Scadden’s Flat and Gold Hill. From 7 the line will pass
through Grass Vallev townsite and return to 1, thus completing the circuit and taking in a market for

. power that is unsurpassed in the United States at so short a distance from the point of generation.



VIEW 1.

Shows the South Yuha River at exireme low water. This is the location where the dam will be constrncted and the
waler tnrned into the flume.

PROSPLECTUS OF NEVADA COUNTY ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY.

BONDHOLDERS’ EARNINGS.

II

Dividend of 20c. on 500 shares, -

- - - $100 00
Interest on $1000 bond at 7%, -

- - 70 00

making an income ou a $1000 investment of -

- - $170 oo per annum, or 17%,
besides having goo shares of the Capital Stock that will yearly be increasing in value.

SURPLUS.

The Company holds $140,000 of honds in trust, to be disposed of when it is deemed necessary or

advisable to increase the capacity of the electrical transmission, thus providing against any assessment
and insuring regular dividends.

S e

Cost of Material and Construction in Detail.

DAM,

The dam w

ill be made of logs securely bolted to the bed rock, and constructed with an overhang-
ing crest.

The object of this dam is not to store water but to divert it from its natural course and turn

it into the flume. ‘The site is so favorable that a good substantial dam could be properly built of logs,
and the entrance to flume well protected, for -

- - $3000.
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Bn Cirass Valley and Nevada City, a distance
‘#beut six and one-half miles. The central and

point of this line is scarcely five miles from

er!

_ gower station and the line is practically a con-

2.0 n of the one running to the mines near

: City.

;Il ": v are at present two petitions before the Board
pervisors for franchises to construct tramways
y «ounty road between the two towns. FEither
lines will be but four miles in length, and
raling Company will depend upon this Com-

¥ fer power.
PRESENT COST OF POWER.

+ generated by water costs from $100 to
per |1, P. per annum. When generated by
B o rosts $150.00.

ws. requiring in the aggregate 1,250 H. P. that
worked profitably with power not costing
Ban $90 per Horse Power, per annum, are
Sy dle.

WORK NOW IN OPERATION,

wately after organization the Company com-
srection of the dam on the South Yuba

_qu is to be fifty-seven feet long at the
| wd one hundred and ffty-one on top. Iis

Bugene de Sabla, Jr,

Hunt E. E. Stark

61

Jno, Martin

height is to be twenty-seven feet and ten inches,
The remainder of the work will be pushed to a
rapid completion.
STOCK, ETC. i
The capital stock is $500,000 divided into 100,000

shares, $50 each—all to be fully paid up.
The total investment it is estimated will be about

$300,000; and the net income is estimated at $140,-
000.

The facts that the power exists—the demand for
it is at hand—that the distances are small requiring
comparatively small expense for copper, together with
the permanency of the water power, renders this a
most advantageous investment.

First operator to second, who is ambitious
to learn, and eventually get on steady at one
of the water power plants: ‘Do you know
what a heavy short does at the Rome Power
House?”

Second operator: ‘‘No.
do?"

First operator: ‘“Makes Rome Howl, of
course.”

What does it

T. E. FocaLsang.
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